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Results at a glance
Group
2018
₦'000

Company
2017 Change
(%)
₦'000

₦'000

2018

2017 Chang
(%)
₦'000

37,674,175

33,131,460

14

37,674,175

33,131,460

14

(688,113)

9,407,611

(107)

(653,217)

9,425,342

(107)

(Loss)/ Profit for the year

(5,419,544)

14,345,583

(138)

(5,384,648)

14,363,314

(137)

Retained earnings

(5,175,481)

18,717,235

(128)

(5,035,111)

18,822,709

(127)

Total assets

81,436,151

100,228,604

(19)

81,578,906

100,331,472

(19)

500,000

500,000

-

500,000

500,000

-

Share premium

8,133,191

8,133,191

-

8,133,191

8,133,191

-

Total equity

8,299,702

34,018,897

(76)

8,439,080

34,121,765

(75)

Revenue
(Loss)/
taxation

Profit

Share capital

before
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2018
The Directors present their report on the affairs of North South Power Company Limited ("the Company")
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group"), together with the financial statements and auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Legal form
The Company was incorporated as a limited liability company on 15 March 2012. It owns 99% of Shiroro
Solar Generating Company Limited, which was incorporated as a limited liability company on 4 March 2015.
It also owns 99% of NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc and North South Gurara Energy Company Limited,
incorporated as public and private companies on 8 September 2017 and 25 July 2018 respectively.
Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are to develop, own and operate power plants and other energy
infrastructure systems with a special emphasis on renewable energy systems including solar, electric, thermal,
wind and hydro power plants.
Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited was established to carry on the Company's solar power generation
project through the generation license obtained by the Company in 2016. It is yet to commence operations as
at the year end. The unexpired life of the licence is 25 years.
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc was established in 2017 as a special purpose vehicle for the purpose of issuing
bonds to fund capital expenditure, working capital, and enhance the liquidity of the Company or any other
Company as stipulated in the object clause.
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited (NSGEC) was incorporated in Nigeria on the 25 July 2018.
NSGEC is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to provide power/ energy services, supply, install
and maintain renewable energy systems.
Concession arrangement
The Federal Government of Nigeria, as represented by the Ministry of Finance Incorporated through the
Bureau of Public Enterprises (BPE), transferred its rights to the operations, restoration and maintenance of the
hydroelectric power production facilities located on the Shiroro Reservoir and the related hydro property of
the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant to the Company through a concession agreement. This concession
agreement was signed between BPE and the Company on 21 February 2013 for a period of thirty (30) years.
However, the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant was officially handed over to the Company on 1 November
2013.
Business review
The Electric Power Sector Reform Act 2005 (Act No 6 of 2005) was established for the privatisation and
transition of the Nigerian electricity market. As part of the Federal Government of Nigeria's (FGN) intiative to
transform the power sector, the Nigerian Electricity Regulatory Commission (NERC) was established under
the Electric Power Sector Reform Act 2005. NERC is Nigeria's independent regulatory agency for the
Nigerian electricity industry comprising generation, transmission and distribution sectors and regulates the
activities of the Company.
In line with the transition, the Company and other players in the Nigerian power sector operated under the
Interim Rules issued by the regulatory body - NERC. The Transitional Stage Electricity Market (TEM) with
its market rules was declared on 1 February 2015. However, the Bulk Power Purchasing Agreement (PPA)
with the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET), covering the terms upon which NBET is to
engage during the TEM in the bulk purchase and resale of electric capacity, electric energy and ancillary
services with the Company, was activated on 1 April 2016.
The Company, in accordance with the TEM rules, continues to generate electricity which is provided to
various electricity distribution companies (EDCs) through NBET.
The Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant currently has a generating capacity of 600 mega-watts (MW). Revenue
is generated from billings for capacity made available and energy shared to the EDCs and is represented by
the monthly final settlement statements received from the Market Operator.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
The total energy generated during the year was 2,480,620 MWh (2017: 2,233,180 MWh).
Deemed capacity during the year was 1,060,699 mega watts (MW) (2017: 931,276 mega watts (MW)). The
Company also earned revenue of ₦172.6 million (2017: ₦186.7 million) from black start services provided
during the year.
During the year, the Company commenced the process of registering a ₦50 billion Note Issuance programme
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The purpose of the programme is to raise funds to
finance the Company's future rehabilitation and expansion plans to increase the Company's contribution to
Nigeria's power generation output by 2020. This process was finalised subsequent to year end.
Operating results and dividends
During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the directors reassessed the Group/ Company's
receivables portfolio in line with IFRS 9. In this regard, increased impariments in the net sum of ₦20.2bn
were made against receivables and this resulted in the net loss recorded in the year.
The following is a summary of the Group and Company’s operating results:
Group
2018
2017
In thousands of Naira
Revenue
37,674,175 33,131,460
(Loss)/ Profit before taxation
(688,113)
9,407,611
Tax (charge)/ credit
(4,731,431)
4,937,972
(5,419,544) 14,345,583
(Loss)/ Profit after taxation

Company
2018
37,674,175
(653,217)
(4,731,431)
(5,384,648)

2017
33,131,460
9,425,342
4,937,972
14,363,314

The directors have not proposed a dividend (2017: $0.065/ ₦20) per ordinary share of ₦1 each. This amounts
to a total dividend of Nil for the year (2017: ₦10 billion).
Directors and their interests
The directors who served during the year were as follows:
Name
Mallam Ibrahim Aliyu (Chairman)
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mrs. Irene Chigbue
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed

Nationality

Dr. George Nwangwu
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
Mr. Isaac Mate
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Mrs. Sa'adiya Aminu
Mr. Oladapo Peters

Zambian
Ghanaian

Shareholder represented
Urban Shelter Limited
BP Investment Limited
Puma Engineering Limited
Pan - African Global
Infrastructure Company Ltd
CEC Africa Hydro Investments
Limited
Niger State Development
Company Limited
Urban Shelter Limited
BP Investment Limited

The interests of the directors in the issued share capital of the Company is as follows:
Number of Ordinary Shares of ₦1 each
2018
2017
Mallam Ibrahim Aliyu - through Urban Shelter Limited
97,758,690
93,606,710
North South Power Services Limited
4,151,980
Engr. Olubunmi Peters - through BP Investment Limited
79,905,405
75,891,892
Opec Investment Inc
9,304,054
9,304,054
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North South Power Services Limited
4,013,513
Roads Nigeria Limited
912,162
912,162
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed - through Puma Engineering Limited
4,378,378
4,378,378
Number of Ordinary Shares of ₦1 each
2018
2017
Dr. George Nwangwu - through Pan-African Global Infrastructure
8,209,459
7,662,162
North South Power Services Limited
547,297
Mr. Oladapo Peters - through BP Investment Limited
Opec Investment Inc
North South Power Services Limited

9,988,176
8,939,189
-

9,486,487
8,939,189
501,689

Shareholding structure
The Company's shareholding structure as at the year end is as follows;

CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited
Urban Shelter Limited
BP Investment Limited
Niger State Development Company
Transatlantic Investment and
Development Company LLC
Pan - African Global Infrastructure
Roads Nigeria Limited
North South Power Services Limited
Opec Investment Inc
Puma Engineering Limited
Olocorp Nigeria Limited

31 December 2018
%
No of shares
128,006,757
25.60
118,125,000
23.63
19.98
99,881,757
50,000,000
10.00

31 December 2017
No of shares
121,621,622
113,108,108
94,864,865
50,000,000

%
24.32
22.62
18.97
10.00

26,452,703

5.29

25,540,541

5.11

26,452,703
18,243,243
18,243,243
7,297,297
7,297,297
500,000,000

5.29
3.65
3.65
1.46
1.46
100

25,540,541
18,243,243
18,243,243
18,243,243
7,297,297
7,297,297
500,000,000

5.11
3.65
3.65
3.65
1.46
1.46
100

During the year, North South Power Services Limited (NSPSL) transferred its 18, 243,243 ordinary shares in
the Group to the following Companies:
No of shares

%

CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited

6,385,135

35.00

Urban Shelter Limited

5,016,892

27.50

BP Investment Limited

5,016,892

27.50

Transatlantic Investment and Development Company LLC

912,162

5.00

Pan -African Global Infrastructure Company Ltd

912,162

5.00

18,243,243

100

Property, plant and equipment
Information relating to property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 11 to these financial statements.
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Subsequent events
On 28th February 2019, North South Power Company Limited (“NSP” or “the Company”) through NSP-SPV
PowerCorp Plc, issued its first N8.5 billion 15 year 15.60% Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green
Infrastructure Bonds (“Series 1 Green Bonds”), due 2034 under a N50 billion Debt Issuance Programme. The
Series 1 Green Bonds is the first certified green corporate bond and the longest tenured (15 year) corporate
bond issued in the Nigeria debt capital markets.
There are no other events after the reporting date which could have had a material effect on the state of affairs
of the Group and/ Company as at 31 December 2018 and on the profit for the year ended which has not been
adequately recognised or disclosed in these financial statements.
Committees
The Company had the following Board Committees during the year
(a) Finance and general purpose committee
The primary responsibility of this committee includes overseeing financial strategy, policy and treasury
matters; proposing and periodically reviewing the Company's financial policies, goals and draft proposals
as directed by the Board; reviewing and evaluating major capital expenditures; considering the awards of
contracts up to a limit as prescribed by the Board of Directors; developing budgets, financial planning and
financial reporting systems; monitoring adherence to the annual operating budget of the Company and
setting of long range financial goals along with funding.
Members of the Committee are;
Mallam Ibrahim Aliyu - Chairperson
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed
Dr. George Nwangwu
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
(b) Technical and operations committee
The functions of this committee include proposing annual production targets; reviewing all the technical
and operational aspects of the Company's operations and future developments and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board of Directors; establishing the plans and criteria for achieving the
Company's operational and production success; periodically presenting an independent assessment of the
Company's annual operating and production plans for all existing and proposed power plants; and
reviewing major commercial agreements for engineering and maintenance activities planned for the
Company's plants and making necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors. Members of the
Committee are;
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa - Chairperson
Mr. Isaac Mate
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mr. Oladapo Peters
Dr. George Nwangwu
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed
(c) Remuneration and human resource committee
The functions of this committee include proposing the remuneration arrangements for the executive and
non-executive directors of the Company; proposing levels of employee remuneration within a specified
limit; developing qualification criteria for recruitment and placement of management and senior staff of
the Company; proposing incentive compensation plans, policies and programs; proposing policies for
motivation and retention of relevant skilled labour, employee restructuring and terminal benefit packages.
Members of the Committee are;
Dr. George Nwangwu - Chairperson
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mr. Oladapo Peters
Mrs. Irene Chigbue
Mrs. Sa'adiya Aminu
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
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(d) Audit Committee
The major functions of the audit committee include overseeing the auditing process of the Company,
monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Company; maintaining oversight over the
auditing, accounting and financial reporting policies and processes; monitoring the performance of the
Company's internal controls, risk management and assurance function and the performance of the internal
audit function. Members of the Committee are;
Mrs. Irene Chigbue - Chairperson
Dr. George Nwangwu
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mrs. Sa'adiya Aminu
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
(e) Safety Health and Environment (SHE) Committee
The primary functions of this committee include the development of a comprehensive SHE program for
the Company; proposing implementation modalities of SHE programs; and ensuring periodic reviews of
compliance with the Company's SHE policies. Members of the Committee are;
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed - Chairperson
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
Mr. Isaac Mate
Mrs. Irene Chigbue
Employment and employees
(a) Employment of physically challenged persons
The Group has no physically challenged employees. However, applications for employment by
physically challenged persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes
and abilities of the applicants. In the event of members of staff becoming physically challenged,
every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate
training is arranged. The training, career development and promotion of physically challenged
persons should, as far as possible, be identical to those of other employees.
(b) Employee health, safety and welfare
The Group places a high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees in their place of
work. The Group's policy includes having various forms of insurance policies to secure and protect
its employees. In addition, it operates on-site medical facilities and services for immediate attention to
employees as may be necessary in the course of operations.
(c) Employee consultation and training
The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees in major policy matters and
maintains a practice of keeping them informed on matters affecting them as employees, and on the
various factors affecting the performance of the Group through formal and informal meetings.
Employees receive on-the-job training, complimented where necessary with additional facilities from
training institutions.
Other technical and financial information
A The Nigeria Electricity Market Stabilization Facility (NEMSF) was an intervention fund by the Central
Bank of Nigeria (CBN) to pay the debts owed the generation companies (GENCOs) by power distribution
companies (DISCOs) during the Interim Rules Period. The disbursed funds will be repaid by the DISCOs
and do not represent a liability to the Company.
As at year end, a cummulative amount of ₦7.21 billion (2017: ₦4.97 billion) has been received from the
CBN-NEMSF since its inception. The funds received have reduced the indebtedness of the DISCOs to
the Company and have been utilised for the operation and maintenance of the Shiroro Hydroelectric
Power Plant.
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B On 22 March 2017, the Federal Executive Council (FEC) approved the Power Sector Recovery
Programme (“PSRP”). The PSRP was jointly developed by the Federal Government of Nigeria and the
World Bank, and involves a series of power sector focused policy actions, operational, governance and
financial Interventions to be implemented by the Federal Government of Nigeria between 2017 – 2021.
One of the financial interventions which has commenced is the ₦701 billion Payment Assurance
Guarantee Facility ("PAG") which guarantees generation companies a minimum of 80% payment of
invoices for electricity taken up by NBET (excluding Deemed capacity) commencing from the January
2017 invoice over the next two years. During the year, receipts from the PAG amounted to ₦11.26 billion
($36.69 million) (2017: ₦6.52 billion; $21.34 million). Other notable milestones that have been achieved
include the completion of the verification process of the electricity debt owed by the Ministries,
Departments and Agencies (MDAs) of the Federal Government of Nigeria and the financial commitment
of the World Bank and African Development Bank to the PSRP.
C

D

The Company had a Management Services Agreement ("MSA") with its related party - North South
Power Services Limited Mauritius (NSPSL Mauritius). On 16 February 2017, the board of NSPSL
Mauritius passed a resolution to incorporate a new company - North South Power Services Limited
Nigeria (NSPSL Nigeria) to which it transferred all its assets and businesses, including the MSA.
In line with the provisions of the Nigerian Company law which states that "any contract or other
transaction purporting to be entered into by the company or by any person on behalf of the company prior
to its formation may be ratified by the company after its formation and thereupon the company shall
become bound by and entitled to the benefits thereof as if it has been in existence at the date of such
contract or other transaction and had been a party thereto", it was agreed that NSPSL Mauritius will carry
on its business and contracts on behalf of NSPSL Nigeria pending its incorporation.
On 31 August 2017, NSPSL Nigeria was incorporated and on 5 September 2017, all businesses and
contracts entered into on its behalf were ratified.
These events effectively transferred the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of NSPSL Mauritius
under the MSA to NSPSL Nigeria as at 31 December 2017.
In accordance with provisions of the Concession Agreement, the following provisional information have
been disclosed:
(a) The Company's ability to meet its financial obligations are dependent on its ability to collect revenues
from its sales. Though, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, no regulatory or contractual breach
has been noted for the months of operation, the liquidity challenges in the market have had a big
impact on the Company’s ability to collect all its revenues from its electricity sales.
(b) As at year end, the Company had 341 (2017: 331) personnel in its employment carrying out the
business operation of providing electricity to various distribution companies through its sole
customer, NBET.
(c) The Company previously sold power to eleven distribution companies and two international
customers through the Operator of Nigerian Electricity Trading Company (ONEM). From February
2015, the Company sold power to these distribution companies and international customers through
the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET) and this arrangement continued on the
activation of the PPA on 1 April 2016. In 2017, the Company repaired the water intake gate of Unit
4 turbine which led to the recovery of 150MW generation capacity restoring the plant to its nameplate
capacity of 600MW. No major breakdown of the power plant was reported during the year, however,
the Company experienced a flood incident that affected generation in February and March 2018.
(d) The Company had no exceptional health, safety or environmental issues. There were also no
fatalities, lost time accidents and environmental incidences that were recorded.
(e) There were no emergencies experienced.
(f) All standing rules and regulations on environmental issues were observed.
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comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Naira

Notes

Revenue

6.

Direct costs
Gross profit

7

Impairment loss on trade receivables
(30 (a))
General and administrative expenses
Operating profits

7
7

Finance income

8.

Unwinding of discount on concession
fees
Other finance costs
Finance costs

8.
8.

Group
2018

2017

Company
2018

2017

37,674,175
(4,948,106)

33,131,460
(4,453,438)

37,674,175
(4,948,106)

33,131,460
(4,453,438)

32,726,069

28,678,022

32,726,069

28,678,022

(7,555,070) (20,157,297)

(7,555,070)

(4,552,626)

(3,333,353)

(4,517,730)

(3,315,622)

8,016,146

17,789,599

8,051,042

17,807,330

290,795

290,795

9,171

(7,006,629)

9,171
(6,226,498)

(7,006,629)

(6,226,498)

(1,988,425)
(8,995,054)

(2,164,661)
(8,391,159)

(1,988,425)
(8,995,054)

(2,164,661)
(8,391,159)

(8,704,259)

(8,381,988)

(8,704,259)

(8,381,988)

(688,113)
(4,731,431)

9,407,611
4,937,972

(653,217)
(4,731,431)

9,425,342
4,937,972

(5,419,544)

14,345,583

(5,384,648)

14,363,314

Other comprehensive income
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
20
Translation reserve
2,402,086
Other comprehensive income for the year
2,402,086
Total comprehensive income for the year
(3,017,458)

85,983
85,983
14,431,566

2,403,700
2,403,700
(2,980,948)

85,965
85,965
14,449,279

(5,419,544)
(5,419,544)

14,345,583
14,345,583

(5,384,648)
(5,384,648)

14,363,314
14,363,314

(3,017,458)
(3,017,458)

14,431,566
14,431,566

(2,980,948)
(2,980,948)

14,449,279
14,449,279

Net finance costs
(Loss)/ Profit before taxation
Tax (Charge)/ Credit

9
10(a)

(Loss)/ Profit for the year

(Loss)/ Profit attributable to:
Equity owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

21.

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity owners of the parent
21.
Non-controlling interest

(20,157,297)

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

Noncontrolling
interest

Total

6,582,488

28,267,331

-

28,267,331

14,345,583
14,345,583

85,983
85,983

14,345,583
85,983
14,431,566

-

14,345,583
85,983
14,431,566

-

(8,680,000)
(8,680,000)

-

(8,680,000)
(8,680,000)

(8,680,000)
(8,680,000)

500,000

8,133,191

18,717,235

6,668,471

34,018,897

-

34,018,897

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total

Noncontrolling
interest

Total

500,000

8,133,191

18,717,235

6,668,471

34,018,897

-

34,018,897

500,000

8,133,191

(8,473,172)
10,244,063

(4,228,565)
2,439,906

(12,701,737)
21,317,160

-

(12,701,737)
21,317,160

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividend (See Note 26 (b))

-

-

(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)

Total transactions with owners of the Company

-

-

(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

(5,419,544)
(5,419,544)

2,402,086
2,402,086

(5,419,544)
2,402,086
(3,017,458)

-

(5,419,544)
2,402,086
(3,017,458)

500,000

8,133,191

(5,175,481)

4,841,992

8,299,702

-

8,299,702

For the year ended 31 December
In thousands of Naira
At 1 January 2017
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year (restated)
Transaction with owners of the Company
Dividend (See Note 26 (b))
Total transactions with owners of the Company
Balance as at 31 December 2017
For the year ended 31 December 2018
In thousands of US Dollars
Balance as at 1 January 2018
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9, net of tax
(Note 30a)
Adjusted Balance as at 1 January 2018

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

500,000

8,133,191

13,051,652

-

-

-

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Separate statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December
Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total equity

500,000

8,133,191

13,139,395

6,579,900

28,352,486

-

-

14,363,314
-

85,965

14,363,314
85,965

-

-

14,363,314

85,965

14,449,279

Transactions with owners of the
Company
Dividend (See Note 26(b))
Balance as at 31 December 2017
500,000

8,133,191

(8,680,000)
18,822,709

6,665,865

(8,680,000)
34,121,765

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total

Balance as at 1 January 2018
500,000
Adjustment on initial application of
IFRS 9, net of tax
Adjusted Balance as at 1 January
2018
500,000

8,133,191

18,822,709

6,665,865

34,121,765

-

(8,473,172)

(4,228,565)

(12,701,737)

8,133,191

10,349,537

2,437,300

21,420,028

-

-

(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)

-

-

(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)

-

-

(5,384,648)
-

2,403,700

(5,384,648)
2,403,700

-

-

(5,384,648)

2,403,700

(2,980,948)

500,000

8,133,191

(5,035,111)

4,841,000

8,439,080

In thousands of Naira
At 1 January 2017
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the
year

For the year ended 31 December 2018
In thousands of US Dollars

Transactions with owners of the
Company
Dividend (See Note 26(b))
Total transactions with owners of the
Company
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the
year
Balance as at 31 December 2018

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December
In thousands of Naira
Operating activities
(Loss)/ Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
- depreciation
- amortization
- finance costs-net
- taxation
- write back of royalties
- impairment loss on trade receivables

Notes

11.
12.
8.
10(a)
30(a)

Changes in:
- inventories
- trade and other receivables
- prepayments
- trade and other payables
Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities
Dividend paid to shareholders
Principal repayment
Interest payments
Bank charges paid

11.

12.

8.

26(b)
24.
24.

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

17.

Group
2018

2017

Company
2018

2017

(5,419,544)

14,345,583

(5,384,648)

14,363,314

99,176
29,197
10,501,591
4,731,431
20,157,297
30,099,148

42,798
1,797,210
8,381,988
(4,937,972)
(586,027)
7,555,070
26,598,650

99,176
1,837,824
8,692,654
4,731,431
20,157,297
30,133,734

42,798
1,797,210
8,381,988
(4,937,972)
(586,027)
7,555,070
26,616,381

(52,343)
(7,941,458)
(1,531)
266,001
22,369,816

13,451
(19,303,122)
(69,700)
423,395
7,662,674

(505,677)

(48,606)

(505,677)

(48,606)

4,285

3,668

4,285

3,668

(816,675)
290,795
(1,027,272)

(420,032)
9,171
(455,799)

(816,675)
290,795
(1,027,272)

(420,032)
9,171
(455,799)

(7,389,560)
(3,185,583)
(1,258,989)
(86,626)

(4,876,832)
(2,947,865)
(1,698,469)
(126,254)

(7,389,560)
(3,185,583)
(1,258,989)
(86,626)

(4,876,832)
(2,947,865)
(1,698,469)
(126,254)

(11,920,758)

(9,649,420)

(11,920,758)

(9,649,420)

9,421,787

(2,442,545)

9,422,702

(2,444,072)

1,757,664

4,199,240

1,755,828

4,199,240

(820,042)

969

(820,042)

660

10,359,409

1,757,664

10,358,487

1,755,828

(52,343)
13,451
(7,978,497) (19,322,380)
(1,531)
(69,700)
269,368
423,395
22,370,731
7,661,147

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

Reporting entity
North South Power Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on 15 March 2012 as a limited
liability company.
The Company operates in the power sector and its principal activity is to develop, own and operate power
plants and other energy infrastructure systems with a special emphasis on renewable energy systems
including solar, electric, thermal, wind and hydro power plants.
The Company owns 99% of Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited, which was incorporated as a
limited liability company on 4 March 2015. It also owns 99% of NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc and North
South Gurara Energy Company Limited, incorporated as public and private companies on 8 September
2017 and 25 July 2018 respectively.
Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited was established to carry on the Company's solar power
generation project through the generation license obtained by the Company in 2016. It is yet to commence
operations as at the year end.
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc was established in 2017 as a special purpose vehicle for the purpose of issuing
bonds to fund capital expenditure, working capital, and enhance the liquidity of the Company.
On 26th September 2018, the Board of Directors of North South Power Company Limited authorized
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc to raise debt capital up to N50 Billion whether as a standalone transaction or by
the way of bond issuance programme subject to obtaining all requisite approvals from applicable
authorities. Subsequent to year end, the Company raised N8.5 billion from the issue of 15 year Series 1
Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green Infrastructure Bonds at 15.60% interest rate.
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited was incorporated in Nigeria on the 25 July 2018. NSGEC
is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to provide power/ energy services, supply, install and
maintain renewable energy systems.
The Group/ and Company has its operating base at the Shiroro Hydroelectric Plant, Niger State while its
registered/ business office is as follows:
Clan Place, Plot No 1386, Tigris Crescent
Maitama, Abuja Nigeria

2.

Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Group and/ Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap
C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act,
2011.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
23 October 2019.
This is the first set of the Group and Company's annual financial statements which IFRS 15 Revenue
from contracts with customers, and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments have been applied. Changes to
significant accounting policies
(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The methods used to determine fair values for initial
recognition and disclosure purposes are discussed further in Note 4.
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(c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been presented in Nigerian Naira (₦). The Company's functional
currency is US Dollar ($). All financial information presented in Nigerian Naira (₦) has been rounded
to the nearest thousand (₦‘000), unless otherwise indicated.
(d) Use of estimates and judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the Group / Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.
In particular, information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements are described in the following notes:
Note 23 – Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which deductible
temporary difference and tax losses carried forward can be utilised
Note 25(a) – Compliance with payment obligations under the concession agreement.
Note 28 – Contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources
Note 30(a) – Measurements of ECL allowance for trade receivables: key assumptions in determining the
weighted average loss rate
Note 30(e) – Determination of discount rate used in calculating fair value
(e) Changes to Significant accounting policies
The Group/Company has initially applied IFRS 15 (see A) and IFRS 9 (see B) from 1 January 2018
including any consequential amendments to other standards with the initial date of application of 1
January 2018.
A number of other new standards are also effective from 1 January 2018 but they do not have a material
effect on the Group/Company financial statements.
Due to the transition methods chosen by the Group/Company in applying these standards, comparative
information throughout these financial statements has not been restated to reflect the requirements of the
new standards, except for separately presenting impairment loss on trade receivables and contract assets
as a line item in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI) (see B (ii)).
The effect of initially applying these standards is mainly attributed to an increase in impairment losses
recognised on financial assets (see B (ii)).
A. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognized. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services.
Determining the timing of the transfer of control – at a point in time or over time requires judgement.
The Group/and Company has adopted IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of
initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018).
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 has not been restated – i.e. it is presented, as previously
reported, under IAS 18, IAS 11 and related interpretations. Additionally, the disclosure requirements in
IFRS 15 have not generally been applied to comparative information.
IFRS 15 did not have a significant impact on the Group/Company's accounting policies with respect to its
revenue. As such, no adjustments have been made to retained earnings as at 1 January 2018. For
additional information about the Company’s accounting policies relating to revenue recognition, see Note
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B. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.
As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group/and Company has adopted consequential amendments to
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, which require impairment of financial asset to be presented
in a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss and OCI. Previously, the Group/and Company’s
approach was to include the impairment of trade receivables in General and administrative expenses.
Consequently, the Group/and Company reclassified impairment losses amounting to N7.56 billion (USD
24.7million), recognised under IAS 39, from ‘General and administrative expenses’ to ‘impairment loss
on trade receivables and contract assets’ in the statement of profit or loss and OCI for the year ended 31
December 2017.
Additionally, the Group/and Company has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures that are applied to disclosures about 2018 but have not been generally applied to
comparative information
The following table summarises the impact, net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening balance of
reserves, retained earnings and NCI (for a description of the transition method, see (iii)).
Impact of
adopting IFRS 9
at 1 January
2018
Note
NGN' 000
Retained earnings
Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9
30
8,473,172
Related tax
Impact at 1 January 2018
8,473,172
i. Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost,
FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9
eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.
Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Group/and Company’s
accounting policies related to financial liabilities.
For an explanation of how the Group/and Company classifies and measures financial instruments see
Note 3(c).
The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories
under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group/and
Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018.
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The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 January 2018 relates solely
to the new impairment requirements.
In thousands of Naira

Original
Classificatio
n under IAS

New Original carrying
Classification amount under IAS
39
under IFRS 9

New carrying
amount under
IFRS 9

Financial Assets
Trade and other receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
equivalents
Total Financial assets
In thousands of Naira

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Dividend Payable
Total Financial Liabilities

Loans and
receivables
Loans and
receivables
Original
Classificatio
n under IAS

Amortised Cost

42,491,160

34,017,988

Amortised Cost

1,755,828

1,755,828

44,246,988

35,773,816

New Original carrying
Classification amount under IAS
under IFRS9
39

New carrying
amount under
IFRS 9

Other
financial
Other
financial

Amortised Cost

8,860,536

8,860,536

Amortised Cost

6,352,866

6,352,866

Other
financial

Amortised Cost

3,819,798

3,819,798

19,033,200

19,033,200

Trade and other receivable that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified
at amortised cost. An increase of N27.03 billion (USD $88.34 million) in the allowance for impairment
over these receivable was recognised in opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 on transition to IFRS
9.
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018
Company
In thousands of Naira
IAS 39 carrying Remeasurement IFRS 9 carrying
amount at 31
amount at 1
December 2017
January 2018
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables:
Brought forward: Loans and receivable
42,491,160
Remeasurement
(8,473,172)
Carried forward: Amortised cost
34,017,988
Total amortised cost
42,491,160
(8,473,172)
34,017,988
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Group
In thousands of Naira

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables:
Brought forward: Loans and receivables
Remeasurement
Carried forward: Amortised cost
Total amortised cost

IAS 39 carrying Remeasurement IFRS 9 carrying
amount at 31
amount at 1
December 2017
January 2018

42,388,956
42,388,956

(8,473,172)
(8,473,172)

33,915,784
33,915,784

ii. Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are
recognised earlier than under IAS 39 – see Note 3(f)(i).
For assets in the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are generally expected to
increase and become more volatile. The Group/and Company has determined that the application of IFRS
9’s impairment requirements at 1 January 2018 results in an additional allowance for impairment as
follows.
In thousands of
Naira
7,555,070
Total loss allowance on trade receivable at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39
Additional Impairment recognised at 1 January 2018 on Trade receivables
8,473,172
Total loss allowance at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9
16,028,242
Additional information about how the Company measures the allowance for impairment is described in
Note 30(a).
iii. Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied as
described below:
–– The Group/and Company has used an exemption not to restate comparative information for prior
periods with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) requirements.
Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from the
adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does not generally reflect the requirements of IFRS
9, but rather those of IAS 39.
–– The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held have been made on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial application.
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3.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.
(a) Basis of consolidation
i. Business combination
The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at
fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for
impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
The accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group
and all intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
On disposal of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiaries at their carrying amounts at the date of disposal and also derecognises
the carrying amount of any related non controlling interest and other component of equity at the
date of sale but recognises the fair value of the consideration received from the sale, while any
resulting difference is recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
ii. Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interest is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a
parent company and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling interests is presented on the line “Non-controlling interests” in the
consolidated statement of financial position, even if it can create negative non-controlling interest.
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the identified net assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group's interest in subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
accounted for as equity transactions.
iii Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power over
the entity, is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment losses in the separate financial
statements. Where, in the opinion of the directors, there has been impairment in the value of an
investment, the loss is recognised as an expense in the year in which the impairment is identified.
iv. Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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(b) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in US Dollar at the actual
exchange rates as of the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the
period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.
Translation to presentation currency
The Group and/ Company's functional currency (US Dollar) is different from the presentation currency
(Nigerian Naira). The results and financial position of the Group and/ Company are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:
- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;
- income and expenses for each statement presenting profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case, income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
- cash flows are translated at average exchange rate;
All resulting exchange difference are recognised as a separate component of equity through other
comprehensive income.
(c) Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group/ and Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets – Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity investment; or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
– it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
– its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets – Business model assessment: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
The Group/ and Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed
and information is provided to directors. The information considered includes:
– the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether the directors' strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
– how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the directors
– the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
– how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
– the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets – Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group/and Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group/ and Company considers:
– contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
– terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
– prepayment and extension features; and
– terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. nonrecourse features).
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses: Policy applicable from 1
January 2018
Financial assets
at amortised
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets – Classification: Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
The Group/ and Company classified its financial assets into the loans and receivables category as it
only had financial assets in that category.
Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses: Policy applicable before 1
January 2018
Loans and receivables Measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss
iii Derecognition
Financial assets
The Group/and Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
Financial liabilities
The Group/Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
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On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.
iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group/Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
v. Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments – Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
The Group/ and Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.
Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Derivative financial instruments – Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
The policy applicable before 1 January 2018 is similar to policy applicable after 1 January 2018.
(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
i. Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if and only if:
- It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
- the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Property, plant
and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. The cost of selfconstructed asset includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use including, where applicable, the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and
borrowing costs on qualifying assets.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
the equipment.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
ii. Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and/ Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
iii. Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are available for use or,
in respect of self constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives.
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Depreciation is generally recognized in profit or loss, unless the amount is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful life unless it is
reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term in which case,
the assets are depreciated over the useful life.
The estimated useful lives of property plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are as
follows:
Type of asset
Useful life
Furniture and Fittings
5 years
5 years
Office equipment
Motor vehicles
5 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.
Capital work in progress is not depreciated. The attributable cost of each asset is transferred to the
relevant asset category immediately the asset is available for use and depreciated accordingly.
The Hydro property at the Shiroro Plant have not been recognised as part of the Company's Property
Plant and Equipment (PPE) as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as PPE under IAS 16.
(e) Leases
Leased assets
Leases in terms of which the Group and/ Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.
Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised in the Group and/
Company's statement of financial position.
Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense,
over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Group and/ Company determines whether such an arrangement is or
contains a lease. This will be the case if the following two criteria are met:
- the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and
- the arrangement contains a right to use the asset(s).
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement, the Group and/ Company separates payments and
other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements
on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Group and/ Company concludes for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount
equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made
and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Group and/ Company’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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(f) Impairment
i. Non-derivative financial assets -Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
The Group/ and Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- contract assets
The Group/ and Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for
the
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group/ and Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s/ and Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
The Group/ and Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due.
The Group/ and Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group/ and Company in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is more than 365 days past due
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months).
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group/ and Company is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
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- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group/ and Company on terms that the Group/ and
Company would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group/ and Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group/
and Company has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount of the financial asset when the
outcome of an enforcement activity has proven beyond reasonable doubt that there is no reasonable
expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group/ and
Company believes there is reasonable expectations of recovering the carrying amount of its financial
assets while the financial asset is still subject to enforcement activity.
ii. Non-derivative financial assets - Policy applied before 1 January 2018
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor,
restructuring of an amount due to the Group and/ Company on terms that the Group and/ Company
would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, or the
disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.
The Group and/ Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset
and collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. All
individually significant assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for
any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk
characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment, the Group and/ Company uses historical information on the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical
trends.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset, where applicable,
continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.
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iii. Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group and/ Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or
CGU”).
The Group and/ Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an
indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized
in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro
rata basis.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
(g) Provisions and contingent liabilities
i

Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group and/ Company has a present legal or
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group and/ Company has approved a detailed
and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced
publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Group and/ Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the Group and/ Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with
that contract.
ii Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group and/ Company, or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
If the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision nor
a contingent liability and no disclosure is made.

35

North South Power Company Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2018

Notes to the financial statements
(h) Revenue
Revenue recognition under IFRS 15: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Service concession arrangement
Revenue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognised
over time while Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are
provided by the Group/and Company.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group/and
Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over the service to the customer.
The Group/and Company currently generates its revenue from capacity generated and energy shared.
Capacity generation is the maximum electricity available for consumption at any given time which is
measured in megawatts (MW) whilst energy shared is the actual electricity consumed which is measured
in kilo-watt-hours (kWh).
Revenue from Deemed capacity represents consideraton to the Group/ and Company for capacity which it
makes available but is not taken up by NBET.
Other revenue represents fixed and variable component of black-start billings earned by the Company
during periods of turbulent storm and back flush of electricity.
Revenue recognition under IFRS 15: Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
Service concession arrangement
Revenue from services rendered was recognized in profit or loss in the accounting period in which the
services were rendered and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
excluding discounts, value added taxes and similar levies. Revenue was recognized only when it was
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group/ and Company
and the amount could be measured reliably.
The Group/and Company currently generates its revenue from capacity generated and energy shared.
Capacity generation is the maximum electricity available for consumption at any given time which is
measured in megawatts (MW) whilst energy shared is the actual electricity consumed which is measured
in kilo-watt-hours (kWh). Other revenue represents fixed and variable component of black-start billings
earned by the Company during periods of turbulent storm and back flush of electricity.
(i) Finance income and finance costs
Finance income comprises interest income on deposits. Finance income is recognized as it accrues in
profit or loss, using the effective interest method.
Finance costs comprise bank charges, interest expense on borrowings, fair value loss on derivative
liability and unwinding of the discount on provisions. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
- The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
-

The amortised cost of the financial liability.
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In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income revert to the gross basis.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.
(j) Income and deferred tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognized directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.
i

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates statutorily enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. The Company
is subject to tax under the Companies Income Tax Act (CITA). The Company is also subject to
tertiary education tax governed by the Tertiary Education Trust Fund (Establishment) Act LFN 2011.

ii Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:
• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
• temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a
deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business plans of the Company as approved by the Directors.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
(k) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is determined
using the weighted average method and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. Inventory values are adjusted for obsolete, slow moving and
defective items.
(l) Intangible assets
i Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and/ Company are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Service concession arrangement
The Group and/ Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession
arrangement when it has a right to charge for use of the concession infrastructure. The intangible asset
is measured initially at cost which comprises of the fair value of the fixed payment made/payable to
the grantor and other directly attributable expenditure.
An intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a
service concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition with reference to the
fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is measured at cost, less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets with finite useful lives
Other intangible assets, including IT Software and the solar generating license acquired by the
Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
ii Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on the concession infrastructure and solar generating license is capitalised
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific intangible asset to which
it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as the obligation falls due.
iii Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets using the straight line method over
their estimated useful life and is generally recognized in profit or loss account.
The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
- service concession
over the concession period
- solar generating license
10 years
- IT software
5 years
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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(m) Dividends
An accrual is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
(n) Share capital
The Company has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.
When new shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their value. The excess of the issue
price is recorded in the share premium reserve.
(o) Operating profit
Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing activities of the
Group and/ Company as well as other income and expenses related to operating activities. Operating
profit excludes net finance costs and income taxes.
(p) Employee benefits
i Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity as the related service is provided. The Group
and/ Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.
In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Group and Company has instituted a
defined contribution pension scheme for its permanent staff. The Group and/or Company and
employee contributes 10% and 8% respectively of each employee’s basic salary, transport and housing
allowances which is charged to profit or loss as employee benefit expense in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees. Employee contributions are funded through payroll deductions.
ii Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonuses if the
Group and/ Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
iii Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group and/ Company before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group and/ Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group and/ Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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(q) Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. Changes in statement of financial
position items that have not resulted in cash flows are eliminated for the purpose of preparing the
statement of cash flows. Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders are included in financing activities.
Finance costs paid is also included in financing activities while finance income is included in investing
activities.
The Company has adopted Amendments to IAS 7 (Disclosure Initiative) with initial date of application of
1 January 2017. The amendments provide for disclosures which enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from cash
flow and non-cash changes. This includes providing a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances arising from the financing activities.
(r) Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.
When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
transaction.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company determines
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured
at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the
instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.
(s) Accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2018 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in
preparing these financial statements and plans to adopt them as relevant on their respective effective date.

A

Of those standards that are not yet effective, IFRS 16 is expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determine whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC -15 Operating Leases- Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal form of a lease. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15
at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.
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IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard – i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases.
The Group and /or Company has completed initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated
financial statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The actual impact of applying
IFRS 16 on the financial statements in the period of intial application will depend on future economic
conditions, including the Group and/Company's borrowing rate at 1 January 2019, the composition of the
Group and/Company's lease portfolio at that date, the Group and/Company's latest assessment of whether
it will exercise any lease renewal options and the extent to which the Group and/Company chooses to use
practical expedients and recognition exemptions.
The Group and/Company may need to recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of
property; apartments and building. In addition, the nature of expenses related to those leases will change
as IFRS 16 replaces the straight -line operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for right-of-use
assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.
The Company's assessment however did not indicate any material impact regarding the recognition of
assets and liabilities for its operating leases of property; apartments and buildings and the depreciation
charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.
Determine whether an arrangement contains a lease
On transition to IFRS 16, the Group and/Company can chose whether to:
-apply the IFRS 16 definition of a lease to all its contracts; or
- apply a practical expedient and not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
The Group and/Company plan to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on
transition. This means that will apply IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before 1 January 2019 and
identified as leases in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.
Previously, the Company recognised operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease, and recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference
between actual lease payments and the expense recognised. No significant impact is expected for the
Company’s finance leases.
iii Transition
As a lessee, the Group and/Company can either apply the standard using a:
-retrospective approach or
-modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients.
The lessee applies the election consistently to all of its leases.
The Group and/Company plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019, using the modified
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019, with no restatement of
comparative information.
When applying the modified retrospective approach to leases previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17, the lease can elect, on a lease-by-lease basis, whether to apply a number of practical
expedients on transition. The Group and/Company is assessing the potential impact of using these
practical expedients.

41

North South Power Company Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2018

Notes to the financial statements
B

Other standards (with corresponding effective dates)
The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements
New or amended
standards

Date
Issued
by
IASB
Amendments to IAS October
1 and IAS 8 2018
Definition of
Material

Effective
Date
Periods
beginning
1 January
2020; Early
adoption is
permitted

Summary of requirements and impact assessment

The IASB refined its definition of material to make it
easier to understand. It is now aligned across IFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework.
The changes in Definition of Material
(Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) all relate to a
revised definition of ‘material’ which is quoted below
from the final amendments
“Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial

statements,

which

provide

financial

information about a specific reporting entity.”
The Board has also removed the definition of material
omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 Accounting

IFRIC 23Uncertainty Over
Income Tax
Treatments

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
The amendments are effective from 1 January 2020 but
may be applied earlier. However, the Board does not
expect significant change – the refinements are not
intended to alter the concept of materiality.
IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for income tax
June 201 1 January
2019; Early treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax
adoption is authorities. Specifically, IFRIC 23 provides clarity on
how to incorporate this uncertainty into the
permitted
measurement of tax as reported in the financial
statements.
IFRIC 23 does not introduce any new disclosures but
reinforces the need to comply with existing disclosure
requirements about:
•Judgments made;
•Assumptions and other estimates used; and
•The potential impact of uncertainties that are not
reflected
IFRIC 23 applies for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. Earlier adoption is permitted.
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Amendments to IFRS October 1 January
2018
2020 Early
3
adoption is
permitted

Defining a business is important because the financial
reporting requirements for the acquisition of a business
are different from the requirements for the purchase of
a group of assets that does not constitute a business.
The proposed amendments are intended to provide
entities with clearer application guidance to help
distinguish between a business and a group of assets
when applying IFRS 3.
In October 2018 the IASB issued this amendment to
make it easier for companies to decide whether
activities and assets they acquire are a business or
merely a group of assets. The amendments:
• Confirm that a business must include inputs and a
process, and clarified that:
(i) the process must be substantive and
(ii) the inputs and process must together significantly
contribute to creating outputs.
• Narrow the definitions of a business by focusing the
definition of outputs on goods and services provided to
customers and other income from ordinary activities,
rather than on providing dividends or other economic
benefits directly to investors or lowering costs; and
Add a test that makes it easier to conclude that a
company has acquired a group of assets, rather than a
business, if the value of the assets acquired is
substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group
of similar assets.
The amendments are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that
occur on or after the beginning of that period. Earlier
application is permitted.
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4.

Measurement of fair values
Some of the Group and/ Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group and/ Company uses observable data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
*
Level 1:
*

Level 2:

*

Level 3:

input other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as derived
from prices).
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different
levels of fair value hierarchy, then the fair measurement must be categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group and/ Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring the fair values is included in Note 30 Financial Instruments.
5.

Service concession arrangement
On 21 February 2013, the Company entered into a service concession agreement with the Federal
Government of Nigeria ("Federal Government") to generate and provide electricity from the Shiroro
Hydro Electric Power Plant. The Company officially took over the plant on 1 November 2013. Under the
terms of the agreement, the Company will operate and make the electricity available to the public for a
period of thirty years, starting from 1 November 2013. The Company will be responsible for any upgrade
and maintenance services required during the concession period. In addition, the Company has an
obligation to restore the Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant to its full operational capacity at the end of
the concession period. To this end, it continues to incur costs on the repair, refurbishment and
rehabilitation of the plant as is necessary.
The Company, through the Bureau of Public Enterprise ("BPE") will provide the Federal Government a
guaranteed minimum annual payment for each year that the Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant is in
operation. Additionally, the Company has the right to charge a predetermined price for capacity available
and energy generated which the Company will collect and retain. At the end of the concession period, the
Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant will become the property of the Federal Government and the
Company will have no further involvement in its operation or maintenance requirements.
The service concession agreement does not contain a renewal option. The rights of the grantor to
terminate the agreement include poor performance by the Company and in the event of a material breach
in the terms of the agreement. The rights of the Company to terminate the agreement include a material
breach in the terms of the agreement, and any changes in law that would render it impossible for the
Company to fulfil its requirements under the agreement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company earned revenue of ₦37.67 billion (2017: ₦33.13
billion), consisting of ₦27.7 billion (2017: ₦24.34 billion) on capacity and energy generation, ₦9.8
billion (2017: ₦8.61 billion) on deemed capacity and ₦172.64 million (2017: ₦186.78 million) on blackstart billings (See Note 6). The Company's loss before tax was ₦0.69 billion (2017:Profit before tax of
₦9.43 billion).
The Company has recognised a service concession payable, measured initially at the fair value of the
annual fees of ₦13.25 billion ($85,329,132) representing the present value of the guaranteed annual
minimum payments to the BPE, discounted at a rate of 15%. Balance as at year end is ₦54.35 billion
($177.04 million) (2017: ₦47.17 billion; $154.15 million) (See Note 25).
The Company has recognised an intangible asset of ₦54.19 billion (2017: ₦53.22 billion); ₦9.01 billion
has been amortised to date (2017: ₦7.19 billion) (See Note 12). This capitalised cost of the intangible
assets include all preacquisition costs of the concession and the discounted value of the annual fees
payable to the BPE. The intangible asset represents the right to charge users a fee for the generation of
electricity.
Keep or deal items (other payables)
Items provided by the grantor are keep or deal items in which the Company may retain or sell at its
discretion. These are measured at fair value on initial recognition with a corresponding liability
representing the obligation to provide services in the future. This obligation is unwound to the profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the period of service.
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6. Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major service lines as follows:
Timing of
Group
Company
Recognition
2018
2018
2017
2017
At a point in time
Electricity Revenue
27,703,274 24,335,860
27,703,274
24,335,860
Deeemed Capacity
At a point in time
9,798,261
8,608,818
9,798,261
8,608,818
Revenue
172,640
172,640
Other revenue (Note 6(a))At a point in time
186,782
186,782
37,674,175 33,131,460
37,674,175
33,318,242
(a) Other revenue represents fixed and variable component of black-start billings earned by the Company.
The fixed element represents revenue earned on capacity generated to supply energy during periods of
turbulent storm and back flush of electricity. The variable element represents revenue earned on each
incident of black start activity to other generating companies through the Market Operator.
(b) The following table provides information about receivables from contracts with customers
Group
Company
31-Dec-18
31-Dec-18
1-Jan-18
1-Jan-18
Receivables which are included in trade
19,384,594 41,428,422
19,384,594
41,428,422
and other receivables (Note 15)
7. Expenses
Group
Company
2018
2017
2018
2017
1,385,103
1,385,103
1,647,112
1,647,112
Royalties (Note 7(a))
(586,027)
(586,027)
Write back of royalties (Note 7(b))
897,791
897,791
914,043
Staff costs
914,043
1,790,991
1,790,991
1,773,060
1,773,060
Amortisation of concession cost (Note 12)
Management services (Note 27(e))
675,563
675,563
619,043
619,043
198,658
198,658
86,207
Maintenance costs
86,207
4,453,438
4,948,106
4,453,438
Direct costs
4,948,106
Depreciation (Note 11)
99,176
99,176
42,798
42,798
Amortisation (Note 12)
46,833
46,833
24,150
24,150
1,565,089
1,440,764
1,565,089
Staff costs
1,440,764
232,636
147,653
232,636
Maintenance costs
147,653
34,896
Consultancy fees on solar and other projects
17,731
17,754
17,754
31,181
Auditor's remuneration (Note 9(c ))
31,181
Professional fees
228,044
228,044
196,260
196,260
Travel expenses
379,870
379,870
169,358
169,358
Directors' remuneration
974,316
974,316
614,764
614,764
Rental and insurance charges
374,666
374,666
169,052
169,052
Security costs
66,424
66,424
61,140
61,140
Utility costs
7,653
7,653
8,560
8,560
Medical expenses
12,856
12,856
22,316
22,316
Motor running expenses
76,525
76,525
41,270
41,270
Entertainment expenses
48,364
48,364
13,451
13,451
Office expenses
27,549
27,549
22,928
22,928
Provision for indirect taxes
180,057
180,057
Other expenses
359,975
359,975
129,920
129,920
4,552,626
3,333,353
4,517,730
3,315,622
General and administrative expenses
Impairment loss on trade receivables (Note
30(a))
20,157,297
7,555,070
20,157,297
7,555,070
20,157,297
7,555,070
20,157,297
7,555,070
Impairment loss on trade receivables
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Total direct costs, impairment loss,
general and administrative expenses

29,658,029

15,341,860

29,623,133

15,324,130

(a) Amount represents accrued monthly royalty payable to the Bureau of Public Enterprises being five per
cent (5%) of the Company's pre-tax gross sales revenue over the previous month. Pre-tax gross sales is
exclusive of income from black start services.
(b) Amounts represent the write back of royalties accrued on the deemed capacity billing which was
impaired in 2017.
8. Finance income and finance costs
Group
2018
Finance income
Interest income
Finance costs
Unwinding of discount on concession fees
payable (Note 25)
Bank charges and fees
Interest on bank loan (Note 24)
(Gain)/Loss on fair valuation of derivative
liability (Note 22)
Foreign exchange loss, net
Other finance costs
Net finance costs

2017

Company
2018

2017

290,795

9,171

290,795

9,171

7,006,629
86,626
1,052,372

6,226,498
126,254
1,608,593

7,006,629
86,626
1,052,372

6,226,498
126,254
1,608,593

(2,755)
852,182
1,988,425

2,751
427,063
2,164,661

(2,755)
852,182
1,988,425

2,751
427,063
2,164,661

8,995,054

8,391,159

8,995,054

8,391,159

8,704,259

8,381,988

8,704,259

8,381,988

9 (Loss)/ Profit before taxation
(a) (Loss)/ Profit before taxation is stated after charging/ (crediting):
Group
2018
2017
Depreciation (Note 11)
99,176
42,798
Amortization (Note 12)
1,837,824
1,797,210
Directors' remuneration (Note 9(b) (ii))
974,316
614,764
Auditor’s remuneration (Note 9(c))
17,754
31,181
Staff costs (Note 9(b) (i))
2,698,883
2,354,807
Royalties
1,385,103
1,647,112
Write back of royalties
(586,027)
Impairment loss on trade receivables
20,157,297
7,555,070
Provision for indirect taxes
180,057
Foreign exchange loss, net
852,182
427,063

Company
2018
2017
99,176
42,798
1,837,824
1,797,210
974,316
614,764
17,754
31,181
2,698,883
2,354,807
1,385,103
1,647,112
(586,027)
20,157,297
7,555,070
180,057
852,182
427,063

(b) Staff costs and director's remuneration:
(i)Staff costs during the year amounted to:

Salaries and wages
Pension cost

Group
2018
2017
2,431,965
2,276,854
267,225
78,870
2,699,190
2,355,724

Company
2018
2017
2,431,965
2,276,854
267,225
77,953
2,698,883
2,354,807
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(ii)Directors' remuneration paid during the year were as follows:
Group
2018
2017
Executive director's compensation
236,003
117,695
Directors' fees
700,969
421,255
Other emoluments
37,344
75,814
974,316
614,764

Company
2018
236,003
700,969
37,344
974,316

2017
117,695
421,255
75,814
614,764

(iii The average number of full time persons employed by the Group and /or Company during the year
was as follows:
Group
Company
2018
2017
2018
2017
Number
Number
Number
Number
Operations
205
204
205
204
Administration
136
127
136
127
341
331
341
331
(ivEmployees of the Group and/ Company, other than directors, whose duties were wholly and mainly
discharged in Nigeria, received remuneration in the following ranges:

Below ₦3,000,000
3,000,001
4,000,001
5,000,001
6,000,001
7,000,001
8,000,001
Above ₦9,000,001

4,000,000
5,000,000
6,000,000
7,000,000
8,000,000
9,000,000

Group
2018
2017
Number
Number
143
137
73
71
36
36
13
12
11
11
3
4
21
22
41
38
341
331

Company
2018
2017
Number
Number
143
137
73
71
36
36
13
12
11
11
3
4
21
22
41
38
341
331

(c) Auditor's remuneration represents fees paid to the independent auditor for the following services
provided during the year:
Group
Company
2018
2017
2018
2017
Audit fees
17,754
27,000
17,754
27,000
Advisory fees
1,531
4,181
1,531
4,181
19,285
31,181
19,285
31,181
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10 Taxation
(a) The tax charge for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and income,
which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises:
Group
Current tax expense
Companies income tax
Tertiary education tax
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Tax expense on continuing
operations

Company

169,242
33,848
203,090

2,751
184
2,935

4,528,341

(4,957,811)

4,731,431

(4,954,876)

169,242
33,848
203,090

2,751
184
2,935

4,528,341

(4,957,811)

4,731,431

(4,954,876)

On 10 August 2018, the Company's pioneer status in respect of their activity in electric power generation at
Shiroro, Niger State was extended for a period of two (2) years from 1 November 2016 - 31 October 2018.
Consequently, the Group/ and Company is exposed to a company income tax charge on its profits with effect from
1 November 2018 (2017: Nil). The subsidiaries did not report a taxable income during the year (2017: Nil).
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rates
The tax on the Group and/ Company's (Loss)/ profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount as follows:
Group
Company
2018
2017
2018
2017
%
%
%
%
(Loss)/ Profit before income tax
Income tax using the
30
statutory tax rate
Tertiary education tax
2
using the statutory tax rate
Effect of:
(14)
Non-deductible expenses
Tax Incentives
14
Tax exempt income arising
(720)
from pioneer status
(688)

(688,113)

9,407,611

(653,217)

9,425,342

(206,434)

30

2,822,283

30

(195,965)

30

2,827,603

(13,762)

2

188,152

2

(13,064)

2

188,507

94,655 (5)
(94,805) (80)

(482,247)
(7,488,720)

(13)
15

(5)
83,488
(94,805) (80)

(482,266)
(7,488,720)

4,951,777

-

4,731,431 (53)

(4,960,532)

(758)

4,951,777 -

(724)

4,731,431 (53)

(4,954,876)

(c) Movement in current tax liability
Group
Balance at beginning of year
Provision during the year
Translation adjustment

2018

2017

2,935
203,090
732
206,757

2,935
2,935

Company
2018
2,935
203,090
732
206,757

2017
2,935
2,935
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11. Property, plant and equipment
Group/ Company
(a) The movement on these accounts during the year was as follows:
Motor
vehicles

Office
equipment

105,225
42,186
(9,782)
377

8,845
6,420
35

85,095
279

-

199,165
48,606
(9,782)
691

138,006

15,300

85,374

-

238,680

138,006
353,239
(35,508)
1,386

15,300
9,489
78

85,374
3,367
(4,285)
276

139,582

238,679
505,677
(39,793)
2,150

457,123

24,867

84,732

139,992

706,714

52,155
23,539
(6,114)
188

4,270
2,140
16

46,360
17,119
169

-

102,785
42,798
(6,114)
373

69,768

6,426

63,648

-

139,842

Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposal
Translation adjustment

69,768
77,443
(31,528)
363

6,426
4,592
34

63,648
17,141
(3,979)
247

-

139,842
99,176
(35,508)
645

Balance as at 31
December 2018

116,046

11,052

77,057

-

204,155

At 1 January 2017

53,070

4,575

38,735

-

96,380

At 31 December 2017

68,238

8,874

21,726

-

98,838

At 31 December 2018

341,077

13,815

7,675

139,992

502,559

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2017
Additions
Disposal
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31
December 2017
Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions
Disposal
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31
December 2018
Depreciation:
Balance at 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Disposal
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31
December 2017

Furniture Capital Workand fittings In-Progress

410

Total

Carrying amounts:

(b) The Group and/Company had capital commitments amounting to ₦3.29 billion as at year end.
(c) Capital work in progress represents costs incurred on the Company's building contruction, Furniture &
Fittings construction and equipment acquisition projects in respect of delapidated staff and Guest
house accommodation under development as at the year end (2017: Nil)
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(d) In the opinion of the directors, the Group and/ Company's property, plant and equipment are not
impaired (2017: Nil).
12. Intangible assets
Group/ Company
(a) The movement on these accounts during the year was as follows:
Concession
cost

IT Software
costs

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2017
Additions
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2017
Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2018

52,650,320
392,213
173,009
53,215,542
53,215,542
804,125
176,271
54,195,938

176,900
27,819
607
205,326
205,326
12,550
708
218,584

Amortisation:
Balance at 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2017

5,394,535
1,773,060
19,427
7,187,022

Solar license

Total

24,400
80
24,480
24,480
80
24,560

52,851,620
420,032
173,696
53,445,348
53,445,348
816,675
177,059
54,439,082

69,235
24,150
251
93,636

-

5,463,770
1,797,210
19,678
7,280,658

Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2018
Carrying amounts:
At 1 January 2017

7,187,022
1,790,991
28,753
9,006,766

93,636
46,833
444
140,913

-

7,280,658
1,837,824
29,197
9,147,679

47,255,785

107,665

24,400

47,387,850

At 31 December 2017
At 31 December 2018

46,028,520
45,189,172

111,690
77,671

24,480
24,560

46,164,690
45,291,403

(b) The amortisation of concession costs is included in "direct costs" in the statement of profit or loss.
(c) The balance of ₦54.19 billion on Concession cost consists of the sum of ₦18.98 billion incurred as
cash expenditure, the PV of annual concession fees payable to BPE for year 6 to year 30 and costs
incurred by the Company on upgrade of the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant. Additions during the
year represents costs incurred by the Company on further upgrade of the plant.
(d) No impairment assessment was performed as there was no indicator of impairment as at year end.
13. Investments
Shiroro Solar Generating Company
Limited
NSP-SPV Power Corp Plc
North South Gurara Energy Company
Limited

Group
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

-

-

3,991
921

2,500
-

-

-

2,456
7,368

2,500
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This represents investments of the Company in Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited (SSGC), NSPSPV Power Corp Plc (NSP-SPVP) and North South Gurara Energy Company Limited (NSGEC) .
SSGC was incorporated in Nigeria on 4 March 2015 for the purpose of carrying out the Shiroro solar
power project as well as other businesses in the power sector. It is yet to commence operations as at the
year end. North South Power Company Limited took up 99.99% stake in the issued share capital of SSGC
representing 2.5 million shares of ₦1 each (converted at ₦197/$1) amounting to $₦2.5 million.
NSP-SPVP was incorporated in Nigeria on 8 September 2017 for the purpose of issuing bonds to fund
capital expenditure, working capital, and enhance the liquidity of Company. It is yet to commence
operations as at the year end. North South Power Company Limited took up 99.99% stake in the issued
share capital of NSP-SPVP representing 1.0 million shares of ₦1 each (converted at ₦305.95/$1)
amounting to ₦1.0 million.
NSGEC was incorporated in Nigeria on 25 July 2018 to provide power/energy services, supply, instal and
maintain renewable energysystems. It is yet to commence operations as at the year end. North South Power
Company Limited took up 99.99% stake in the issued share capital of NSGEC representing 2.5 million
shares of ₦1 each (converted at ₦305.95/$1) amounting to ₦2.5 million.
14. Inventories
Group
Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
Spares
785,920
788,256
785,920
788,256
Consumables
338,621
280,296
338,621
280,296
1,124,541
1,068,552
1,124,541
1,068,552
The value of inventories consumed and included in direct costs was ₦54.74 million (2017: ₦50.23
million).
15. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables comprise:
Group

Trade receivables
Black-start billings
Due from related party
(Note 15(a))
Other receivables

Company

31 Dec 2018
19,342,535
42,059

31 Dec 2017
41,395,986
32,436

31 Dec 2018
19,342,535
42,059

31 Dec 2017
41,395,986
32,436

-

-

136,308

102,204

535,408
19,920,002

960,534
42,388,956

535,408
20,056,310

960,534
42,491,160

(a) Due from related party represents expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of Shiroro Solar
Generating Company Limited (SSGC) , North South Gurara Energy Company, and NSP-SPV
Powercorp Plc with respect to Shiroro solar power project, Gurara power plant project and Bond
issuance project respectively. The amounts are repayable on demand.
(b) Included in other receivables is ₦8.94 million receivable from Zenith Bank in respect of unapplied
portion of matured FX Forward purchased on behalf of the Company by the bank in repayment of the
Company's loan obligation to the bank.
(c) Information about the Group/ Company's exposure to credit and market risks and impairment losses
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for trade receivables is included in Note 30(a).
(d) Reconciliation of changes in trade and other receivables to statement of cash flows
Group
Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
Balance, beginning of the year
19,303,122
30,529,280
19,322,380
30,529,280
Adjustment on intial application of IFR
(8,473,172)
(8,473,172)
(7,555,070) (20,157,297)
(7,555,070)
Impairment loss recognised during the y (20,157,297)
Unpaid share capital - Investment in sub
7,368
Translation adjustment
21,305,891
111,624
21,378,534
194,570
Balance, end of year
(19,920,002) (42,388,956) (20,056,310) (42,491,160)
Changes in trade and other receivables
included in statement of cash flows
(7,941,458) (19,303,122)
(7,978,497) (19,322,380)
16. Prepayments
Group
Prepayments comprise:
Insurance
Subscriptions
Rentals
Short term
Long term

Company

31 Dec 2018
115,125
17,499
85,960
218,584

31 Dec 2017
111,384
7,344
97,614
216,342

31 Dec 2018
115,125
17,499
85,960
218,584

31 Dec 2017
111,384
7,344
97,614
216,342

216,742
1,842
218,584

201,960
14,382
216,342

216,742
1,842
218,584

201,960
14,382
216,342

Included in prepaid insurance is ₦2.88 million (2017: ₦2.96 million) which represents un-amortised
premium paid to cover the assets of shareholders, as these were used as collateral for bank loans (Note
28(c)).
17. Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances
Cash in hand
Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of cash flows

Group
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
10,358,794
1,756,746
614
918
10,359,408

1,757,664

Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
10,357,873
1,754,910
614
918
10,358,487

1,755,828

18. Share capital
Share capital comprise:
Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
Authorised share capital:
500,000,000 Ordinary
shares of ₦1 each
converted @ N197/$1

500,000

500,000

Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

500,000

500,000
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Issued, called-up and paid:
500,000,000 Ordinary
shares of ₦1 each
converted @ N197/$1

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of ordinary shares
are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general
meetings of the Company.
19. Share premium
Share premium represents the excess of amount received over the nominal value of the total issued share
capital as at the reporting date.
There was no change in the balance of share premium from the previous year. Share premium is alloted to
the shareholders in the proportion of their shareholding structure.
20. Translation reserve
Translation reserve comprises all foreign currency difference arising from the translation of the financial
statements prepared in the Company's functional currency (US Dollar) into these financial statements
prepared in the Group/ Company's presentation currency (Nigerian Naira).
21. Non controlling interest
Non controlling interest represents 0.01% of all subsidiaries, Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited
(SSGC), North South Gurara Energy Company and NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc. Upon incorporation of these
subsidiaries, the Company acquired 99.99% stake representing 2,499,999 shares out of 2,500,000 shares,
2,499,999 shares out of 2,500,000 shares and 999,999 shares out of 1,000,000 shares respectively. The
impact of this is immaterial in the financial statements.
22. Derivative financial liability
The Company entered into forward contracts with a bank in 2017 for the procurement of US dollars on an
agreed future date and at an agreed forward rate. The directors have determined that this contract is a
foreign exchange forward. The resulting exposure for the Company arising from the settlement of the
foreign exchange forward contract in 2017 has been written back to profit or loss during the year as
described below:
Group
Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
Foreign exchange forward
2,754
2,754
Information about the Group and/Company's exposure to credit and market risks and fair value
measurement is included in Note 30.
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23. Deferred taxation
(a) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) are attributable to the following:
Group/ Company
Assets
31 Dec 2018
298,984
45,450
17,392,704
17,737,138

In thousands of Naira
Property, plant and equipment
Derivative financial liability
Intangible assets
Receivables
Foreign exchange difference
Interest expenses
Concession fees payable
Movement in temporary differences is as follows:
Opening
Group/ Company
balance

Recognised in
PorL

2017
22,348
(8,244,949)
3,635,257
583,956
7,579,139
3,575,751

2017
12,840
880
(1,356,915)
2,417,622
139,820
48,760
3,694,804
4,957,811

Property, plant and equipment
Derivative financial liability
Intangible assets
Receivables
Foreign exchange difference
Interest expenses
Concession fees payable

Liabilities
31 Dec 2017
35,188
880
2,417,622
3,775,077
632,716
11,273,943
18,135,426

31 Dec 2017
(9,601,864)
(9,601,864)

31 Dec 2018
298,984
(13,717,484)
45,450
17,392,704
4,019,654

31 Dec 2017
35,188
880
(9,601,864)
2,417,622
3,775,077
632,716
11,273,943
8,533,562

Recognised in
Recognised in
OCI Closing balance
PorL

Recognised
in OCI

Closing
balance

2018
1,197
38
(71,930)
3,016
(3,485)
2,442
83,155
14,433

2018
298,984
(13,717,484)
45,450
17,392,704
4,019,654

2017
-

31 Dec 2018
(13,717,484)
(13,717,484)

Net

2017
35,188
880
(9,601,864)
2,417,622
3,775,077
632,716
11,273,943
8,533,562

2018
262,599
(918)
(4,043,690)
(2,420,638)
(3,726,142)
(635,158)
6,035,606
(4,528,341)

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets of ₦4.02 billion (2017: ₦8.53 billion) as the directors believe it is probable that the future taxable profits will be
available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.
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24. Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings comprise:
Group
Secured bank loan 1
Secured bank loan 2
Non-current portion
Current portion

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
3,035,002
4,364,784
3,035,002
4,364,784
2,441,878
4,495,752
2,441,878
4,495,752
5,476,880
8,860,536
5,476,880
8,860,536
(2,571,125) (5,957,514) (2,571,125)
(5,957,514)
2,905,755
2,903,022
2,905,755
2,903,022

The movement in the loan and borrowings balance during the year was as follows:

Opening balance
Exchange difference
Interest for the year (Note 8)
Repayments: Principal
Repayments: Interest
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December

Group
2018
2017
8,860,536
11,877,310
(10,407)
(14,979)
1,052,372
1,608,593
9,902,500
13,470,924
(3,185,583) (2,947,865)
(1,258,989) (1,698,469)
(200,860)
35,946
5,257,068
8,860,536

Company
2018
2017
8,860,536
11,877,310
(10,407)
(14,979)
1,052,372
1,608,593
13,470,924
9,902,500
(3,185,583)
(2,947,865)
(1,258,989)
(1,698,469)
(200,860)
35,946
5,257,068
8,860,536

The facilities are secured by, amongst other instruments, the following: (a) shares of the shareholders in
the Company, (b) the personal guarantee of the Chairman, a member of the Board of Directors and some
of the shareholders.
Secured bank loan 1
In 2013, the Company obtained a term loan of ₦10.884 billion from a bank. According to the loan
agreement, the loan attracts an interest of 18% and has a tenor of 7 years. As at 2014 year end, the
interest rate on the loan was revised to 19%. Interest and principal are repayable on a quarterly basis.
In 2015, the Company was granted a deferral on the last quarterly repayment of interest and principal
portion due. The coupon rate was revised upwards to 19.25% on 1 November 2016. There was no
revision to the loan agreement in 2017 or 2018.
Secured bank loan 2
In 2013, the Company secured a term loan of ₦3.28 billion ($23.7 million) from a bank. The loan tenor is
5 years and interest is computed at Libor plus 6.5%, subject to a floor of 8%. Based on the initial loan
agreement, the interest and principal were repayable on a monthly basis after a moratorium period of 12
months on principal only. However, in August 2013, the loan was restructured to extend the moratorium
period by 6 months on the interest and to make principal and interest repayments on a quarterly basis.
In 2015, the bank increased the coupon rate floor to 9%. Effective 1 November 2016, the coupon rate
was further revised to 9.25%. There was no revision to the coupon rate in 2017 and during the year
under review.
Information about the Group and/Company's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk
is included in Note 30.
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25. Concession fees payable
Concession fees payable represent the annual fees payable to the Bureau of Public Enterprises (BPE) in
accordance with the Concession Agreement for years 6 - 30 of the concession.
The movement on this account was as follows:
Group
Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018
Opening balance
Unwinding of discount on
concession fees (Note 8)
Translation adjustment
Non-current portion
Current portion

47,170,818

40,804,425

31 Dec 2017

47,170,818

40,804,425

7,006,629
6,226,498
7,006,629
174,754
139,895
174,754
54,352,201
47,170,818 54,352,201
(39,859,959) (39,948,300) (39,859,959)
14,492,242
7,222,518 14,492,242

6,226,498
139,895
47,170,818
(39,948,300)
7,222,518

Included in the current portion is ₦7.25 billion (2017:Nil) which is past due. (Note 25(a)).
The Concession Agreement states that the Company will be liable to remit an annual fee of
$23,602,484.47 to the BPE beginning from the fifth (5th) anniversary of the concession until the end of
the 30 year concession period. The amount recognised is the present value of the expected future
cashflows discounted using the pre-tax rate of 15%.
(a) Compliance with payment obligations under the concession agreement
Based on the concession agreement, the first instalment of the annual concession fee obligation under
this Concession Agreement, amounting to ₦7.25 billion fell due for payment on 1 November 2018 but
remained unpaid as at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of issue of these financial statements. In
addition, royalty fees amounting to ₦4.8 billion (Note 26) remained unpaid as at year end and up to the
date of issue of these financial statements. Notice of breach of the payment obligations together with a
demand for remedy was made by BPE to NSP during the year.
The Concession Agreement provides that NSP’s events of default include any breach of any of the
payment obligations imposed on NSP that is not remedied within 15 days after notice from the
counterparties giving reasonable notice of the breach and demanding remedy thereof, provided this has
not arisen from a breach of the concession agreement by the BPE or a Federal Government of Nigeria
(FGN) default. An event of default by NSP can result in any of the counterparties terminating the
Concession Agreement.
The Company is owed ₦21.5 billion for deemed capacity (Note 30(a)) by another government parastatal,
the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET). The amount has been outstanding for periods
ranging from ten months to well over three years. This is a breach of NBET's payment obligations under
the Power Purchase Agreement with NSP. In the opinion of the Directors based on legal advice from the
Company's secretary, this constitutes an event of default on the part of the FGN. The Directors are also
of the opinion that since the FGN’s event of default necessitated NSP’s failure to pay the matured
obligations, there has been no NSP event of default and based on the terms of the concession agreement
and there is therefore no contractual grounds for BPE to terminate the concession agreement.
26. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables comprise:
Trade payables
Royalty payable (Note 25(a))
Due to related parties (Note 26(a))
Accruals

Group
Company
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
58,637
4,590
58,637
4,590
4,758,500
3,834,180
4,758,500
3,834,180
188,498
357,714
191,875
357,714
18,113
20,502
18,113
20,502
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Dividend payable (Note 26 (b))
Statutory deductions
Other payables (Note 26 (c))

6,460,201
303,009
1,313,653
13,100,611

3,819,798
747,558
1,388,322
10,172,664

6,460,201
303,009
1,313,653
13,103,988

3,819,798
747,558
1,388,322
10,172,664

(a) Due to related parties comprise:
Group
2018
CEC Africa Hydro Investments
Limited
North South Power Services Limited
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc
North South Gurara Energy Company

2017

Company
2018

2017

-

59,058

-

59,058

188,498
188,498

298,656
357,714

188,498
921
2,456
191,875

298,656
357,714

(b) During the year, a dividend of ₦20 per ordinary share of ₦1 each, amounting to ₦10 billion was
approved by the shareholders for payment. As at 31 December 2018, dividend amounting to ₦7.38
billion was paid, with an outstanding balance of ₦6.46 billion as shown below:

Balance, beginning of the year
Dividend Declared
Dividend Paid
Translation adjustment
Balance, end of the year

Group
2018
2017
3,819,798
10,000,000
8,680,000
13,819,798
8,680,000
(7,389,560)
(4,876,832)
29,963
16,630
6,460,201
3,819,798

Company
2018
2017
3,819,798
10,000,000
8,680,000
13,819,798
8,680,000
(7,389,560)
(4,876,832)
29,963
16,630
6,460,201
3,819,798

(c) Other payables represent the net credit balance of assets and liabilities taken over from Shiroro Hydro
Electric Power Plant on 1 November 2013 less accumulated amortisation, which the Group and/
Company has decided to keep or deal with as it wishes under the concession. The breakdown of the
original amount taken over is as follows:

Inventory
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

Group
2018
1,012,133
353,247
1,365,380
(352,934)
1,012,446

2017
1,012,133
353,247
1,365,380
(325,079)
1,040,301

Company
2018
2017
1,012,133
1,012,133
353,247
353,247
1,365,380
1,365,380
(352,934)
(325,079)
1,012,446
1,040,301

Group
2018
2017
1,388,322
1,333,574
(78,974)
(36,378)
91,126
4,305
1,313,653
1,388,322

Company
2018
2017
1,388,322
1,333,574
(78,974)
(36,378)
4,305
91,126
1,313,653
1,388,322

The movement on this account is as follows:

Balance, beginning of the year
Amortisation
Translation adjustment
Balance, end of the year
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(d) Reconciliation of changes in trade and other payables to statement of cash flows

Balance, beginning of the year
Dividend declared
Dividend paid
Adjustment for non cash
movements
Translation adjustment
Balance end of year
Changes in trade and other
payables included in statement of
cash flows

Group
2018
2017
10,172,664
6,064,010
10,000,000
8,680,000
(7,389,560)
(4,876,832)

Company
2018
2017
10,172,664
6,064,010
10,000,000
8,680,000
(7,389,560)
(4,876,832)

51,506
(13,100,611)

(154,684)
36,776
(10,172,664)

51,516
(13,103,988)

(154,684)
36,776
(10,172,664)

(423,394)

(269,368)

(423,394)

(266,001)

27. Related party transactions
Parent and ultimate controlling party
The Company is owned by various shareholders as disclosed in Note 19 and does not have any parent
company or ultimate controlling company.
Other related party transactions
The Company entered into the following transactions with the under listed related parties during the year:
(a) CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited ("CEC Africa")
CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited owns 25.60% of the Company's shares and provided
financial support (loan) to the Company in prior years. No interest was charged on the loan which is
repayable on demand. There are no amounts due to this related party as at year end as the
outstanding loan due to the related party was paid off during the year (2017: ₦59.06 million).
(b) Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited (SSGC)
Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited was incorporated in Nigeria in 2015 and is owned
99.99% by the Company. SSGC is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to provide
power/ energy services, supply, install and maintain renewable energy systems.
In 2017, the Company was issued the license to operate the Shiroro solar plant and as at year end, the
Company had incurred ₦102.2 million (2017: ₦102.2 million) on behalf of SSGC.
(c) North South Gurara Energy Company Limited (NSGEC)
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited was incorporated in Nigeria on the 25 July 2018 and
is owned 99.99% by the Company. NSGEC is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to
provide power/ energy services, supply, install and maintain renewable energy systems.
As at year end, the Company had incurred ₦33.54 million on behalf of NSGEC and the Company's
indebtedness to NSGEC in respect of the latter's called-up share capital is ₦2.5 million.
(d) NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc (NSP-SPVP)
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc was incorporated in Nigeria in 2017 and is owned 99.99% by the
Company. NSP-SPVP is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to raise capital from the
Nigerian capital market or other international market, issue and invest in bonds, notes, shares,
stocks, debentures, debenture stocks, annuities or other securities issued, sold or sponsored by North
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South Power Company Limited or any other company or body, within or outside Nigeria, for itself
or on behalf of any person(s).
As at year end, the Company had incurred ₦0.46 million on behalf of NSP-SPVP and the
Company's indebtedness to NSP-SPVP in respect of the latter's called-up share capital is ₦1.0
million.
(e) North South Power Services Limited (NSPSL)
North South Power Services Limited was incorporated in Mauritius in 2015 and has some common
shareholders with the Company. Although the Company has no shares in nor control over NSPSL, it had
entered into an agreement with NSPSL for the provision of development, management operations and
maintenance services in respect of the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant known as the Management
Services Agreement ("MSA"). However, on 16 February 2017, the board of NSPSL Mauritius passed a
resolution to incorporate a new company - North South Power Services Limited (NSPSL Nigeria) to
which it transferred all its assets and businesses, including the MSA. Subsequently, on 31 August 2017,
NSPSL Nigeria was incorporated and on 5 September 2017, all businesses and contracts entered into on
its behalf were ratified. With these events, the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of NSPSL
Mauritius under the MSA were effectively transferred to NSPSL Nigeria as at 31 December 2017.
As such, payments for the services provided under the MSA (which is a variable fee of 2.5% of the total
revenue for each year) are now due to NSPSL Nigeria. Total services provided during the year amounted
to ₦648.18 million (2017: ₦619.04 million) and balance as at year end was ₦188.48 million (2017:
₦298.66 million).
Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any director of the
Company. In addition to the directors, key management personnel includes all senior management
personnel of the Company such as the general managers, chief operating and technical officers.
Transactions with the key management personnel during the year are as follows;
The Company’s loan facilities are secured on the Executive Director (ED)’s personal property. As a result
of this, the insurance charges on these assets amounting to ₦6.54 million were paid for by the Company.
(2017: ₦6.67 million).
The Company transacted with Hawthorne Suite Hotel where the Board Chairman is a shareholder.
Transactions during the year amounted to ₦3.16 million (2017: ₦2.11 million).
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised the following:
In thousands of US Dollars
Short term benefits

Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

298,840,532

1,090,738

298,840,532

1,090,738

Included in the key management personnel compensation is the Board of Director's fees of ₦700.97
million (2017: ₦421.26 million).
Loans to key management personnel
The Group and/ Company did not grant any loans to or receive any loans from any key management
personnel.
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28. Contingencies
(a) Financial commitments
The Directors are of the opinion that all significant liabilities and commitments, which are relevant in
assessing the state of affairs of the Group and/ Company, have been taken into consideration in the
preparation of these financial statements.
(b) Claims and litigation
There were no claims and litigations as at year end (2017: Nil).
(c) Guarantees and other contingencies
The Group and/ Company's loans are secured on personal properties of the shareholders.
In addition, the Company obtained a performance bond of $15 million in favour of the Bureau of
Public Enterprises (BPE) issued by Zenith Bank Plc. The performance bond was obtained as security
on the non-compliance with the expected settlement of all the Group and/ Company’s performance
obligations stated in line with the concession agreement with BPE. The directors believe that the
extinguishment of this contingent liability will be at no material loss to the Group and/ Company and
on the basis of this, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.
29. Events after the end of the reporting date
On 28th February 2019, North South Power Company Limited (“NSP” or “the Company”) through NSPSPV PowerCorp Plc, issued its first N8.5 billion 15 year 15.60% Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior
Green Infrastructure Bonds (“Series 1 Green Bonds”), due 2034 under a N50 billion Debt Issuance
Programme.
There are no other events after the reporting date which could have had a material effect on the state of
affairs of the Group and/ Company as at 31 December 2018 and on the profit for the year ended which
has not been adequately recognised or disclosed in these financial statements. Subsequent to year end, the
Company raised N8.5 billion from the issue of 15 year Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green
Infrastructure Bonds at 15.60% interest rate.
30. Financial instruments
Financial risk management overview
The Group and/ Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
credit risk
•
liquidity risk
•
market risk
This note represents information about the Group and/ Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group and/ Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Group and/ Company's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these financial statements.
Risk management framework
The Group and/ Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group and/ Company's risk management framework.
The risk management policies have been developed to identify and analyse risks faced by the Group and/
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group and/ Company's activities. The Group and/ Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, has a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all it's
employees understand their roles and obligations.
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(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and/ Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group
and/ Company's receivables from customers.
Trade and other receivables
The Group and/Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each distribution company and the ability of the Operator of the Nigeria Electricity
Market ("ONEM" or "Market Operator") and the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Plc (NBET) to
regulate and enforce payments by both local and international distribution companies.
Impairment loss on trade receivables recognised in profit or loss as at year end is ₦ 3.44 billion
(2017: ₦7.56 billion)
Comparative information under IAS 39
An analysis of the credit quality and the ageing of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired as at 31 December 2017:

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Past due 16 - 90 days
Past due 91 - 180 days
Past due 181 - 270 days
Past due 271 - 365 days
Past due more than 365 days

Group
31 Dec 2017
3,344,274
6,614,496
5,207,508
673,506
1,273,878
24,314,760
41,428,422

Company
31 Dec 2017
3,344,274
6,614,496
5,207,508
673,506
1,273,878
24,314,760
41,428,422

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at 1 January and 31 December 2018
The Group and/ Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from
its customers. Loss rates are calculated using the default method and are calculated separately for
exposures in different segments based on their common credit risk characteristics.
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three years using lifetime expected
credit losses approach.
Impairment of receivable
The company has adopted the use of simplified approach in computing impairment of trade
receivables using the provision matrix method since the Company's trade receivables have no
significant financing element.
In arriving at the impairment amounts, the trade receivables are segmented based on their credit risk
characteristics and the applicable loss rates are applied to the respective trade receivables category.
The generally applied methodology in terms of IFRS 9 for transactions in Nigeria involves
considering a 3-year period covering 2016-2018 in arriving at the expected credit loss rate to be
applied on the period end trade receivables for arriving at the impairment amount. The rationale for
the approach of using a 3-year period is based on economic realities in Nigeria.
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Using 5-7 years data of the GDP of Nigeria, the Nigerian economy has been classified into three
broad economic cycles – Good, Bad and Normal. Presently, the Nigerian economy has been in a bad
economic cycle (between 2016 and 2018) with GDP growth rate at less than 2%. As at 31 December
2018, the relevant 9 months GDP rate was 1.8% and from review of published expectations the GDP
most recent forecast has been reduced to 1.9% recently due to disruptions on economic and
investment activities during an election year. Based on the forecast for 2019 GDP growth, it is
expected that the current economic cycle will continue (i.e. bad economic cycle). Thus, the
application of the average historical loss rates for this economic cycle (2016-2018) in the calculation
of the 2018 impairment loss. The impact of forward-looking information has been considered in the
average loss rates calculated in a bad economic cycle. No additional forward-looking adjustment is
therefore required in applying this approach.
It is inferred that past ECL rates reflects consistent rate of losses based on actual average loss history
and such losses will continue to revert back to historical information (i.e. the Company does not
expect a divergence from the past historical information) until there is a structural change in the
Nigeria economy in terms of less dependence on proceeds from crude oil to finance our high
dependence on imports and on public sector.
The credit risk characteristic of NSP’s receivables are segmented as follows:
• Receivables from Deemed capacity
• Receivables from revenue invoices covering period prior to the Payment Assurance Guarantee
• Receivables representing 80% of revenue invoices covering period under PAG
• Receivables representing 20% of revenue invoices covering period under PAG
Trade Receivable Categories

Receivables from Deemed capacity

Weighted
average loss
rate

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Loss
allowance

100%

21,606,967

21,606,967

Receivables from revenue invoices covering
period prior to the Payment Assurance Guarantee

35%

20,321,251

7,112,438

Receivables representing 80% of revenue invoices
covering period under PAG

35%

3,396,955

1,188,934

100%

8,251,546

8,251,546

0%

3,925,701

Receivables representing 20% of revenue invoices
covering period under PAG
Receivables from revenue invoices not yet due
(subsequent inflows)

57,502,420

38,159,885

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as
follows: Comparative amounts for 2017 represent the allowance account for impairment losses
under IAS 39.
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Group
Balance at 1 January under IAS 3
Adjustment on initial
application of IFRS 9
Balance as 1 January under IFRS
Impairment loss recognised
Translation adjustment
Balance at 31 December under IF

Company

31 Dec 2018
7,562,484

31 Dec 2017
-

31 Dec 2018
7,562,484

31 Dec 2017
-

8,473,172

-

8,473,172

-

16,035,656
20,157,297
1,966,840
38,159,793

7,555,070
7,414
7,562,484

16,035,656
20,157,297
1,966,840
38,159,793

7,555,070
7,414
7,562,484

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group and/ Company held cash and cash equivalents of ₦10.36 billion as at year end (2017:
₦1.76 billion), which represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. Impairments on cash
and cash equivalent has been measured on a 12 month expected loss basis and effects the short term
maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low
credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties and their ability to meet the cash
and liquidity thresholds set by the Central Bank of Nigeria. The Company did not recognise any
impairment on its cash and cash equivalents.
(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and/or Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group and/ Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.
The Group and/ Company has a clear focus on ensuring sufficient access to capital to finance
growth. As part of the liquidity management process, the Group and/or Company has various credit
arrangements with its bankers which can be utilised to meet its liquidity requirements.
The Group and/or Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount
in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (other than concession fees payable) over
the next 60 days. The Group and/or Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on
trade and other receivables together with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:
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Group /Company
Carrying
amount

---------------------- Contractual cash flows ---------------------6 months
6 months
Above
Total
or less
to 2 years
2 years

At 31 December 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
5,476,880
Trade and other payables*
11,487,326
Concession fees payable
54,352,201

5,925,714
11,487,326
181,149,034

2,371,268
11,487,326
7,245,968

3,554,446
14,491,935

166,657,099

71,316,407

198,562,074

21,104,562

18,046,381

166,657,099

8,860,536
8,036,784
47,170,818

10,591,272
8,036,784
180,558,972

1,828,962
8,036,784
-

5,321,340
14,444,730

3,440,970
166,114,242

2,754
64,070,892

(306)
199,186,722

(306)
9,865,440

19,766,070

169,555,212

At 31 December 2017
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables*
Concession fees payable
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivative financial liability

* Excludes other payables and statutory deductions per Note 26
(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices, will affect the Group and/ Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
The Group and/ Company manages market risks by keeping costs low through various cost optimization
programs. Moreover, market developments are monitored and discussed regularly, and mitigating actions
are taken where necessary.
Currency risk
The Group and/ Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency, the US Dollar. The currency in which these transactions primarily are
denominated is the Naira (₦). The currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.
In managing currency risk, the Group and/ Company aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations
on earnings. As a result of the activation of the PPA in 2016, the Company has a natural hedge to mitigate
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations on its trade receivables. As such, receivables arising from the
sale of electricity to NBET from 1 April 2016, are not exposed to currency risk.
Given that the Company receives Naira from its sales, currency risks related to the principal and interest
repayments on the Group and/ Company's US Dollar loan are fully hedged using foward contracts that
mature on the same dates as the loans are due for repayment and the Group/ Company monitors the
movement in the currency rates on an on-going basis.
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Exposure to currency risk
The Group and/ Company’s transactional exposure to Naira (₦) was based on notional amounts as
follows:
Group
31 Dec 2018
₦'000
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables*

8,037,874
4,791,652

Financial liability
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Net statement of financial position exposure

31 Dec 2017
₦'000
1,341,085
8,833,361

(3,035,002)
(11,314,792)
(1,520,268)

(5,639,417)
(600,925)
3,934,104

31 Dec 2018
₦'000

31 Dec 2017
₦'000

8,036,953
4,791,652

1,339,403
8,935,565
(5,639,417)
(600,925)
4,034,626

Company

Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables*
Financial liability
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Net statement of financial position exposure

(3,035,002)
(11,314,792)
(1,521,189)

*Currency risk on trade receivables is limited to receivables prior to the PPA activation.
The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Average rate
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

Year end spot rate
31 Dec 2017
31 Dec 2018

N

N

N

N

306.1

305.7

307.0

306.0

Sensitivity analysis
A strengthening of the Dollar, as indicated below against the Naira at 31 December would have increased/
(decreased) loss for the year and equity by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign
currency exchange rate variances that the Group and/ Company considered to be reasonably possible at the
end of the reporting period and has no impact on equity.
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Sensitivity analysis
The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017, albeit that the reasonably possible foreign exchange rate variances
were different, as follows:
Decrease in profit or loss and equity
Group
Company
31 December 2018
Nigerian Naira (20% strengthening)

(1,697)

31 December 2017
Nigerian Naira (20% strengthening)

(2,601)

(1,741)
(2,668)

A weakening of the Dollar against the Naira at 31 December would have had the equal but opposite effect
on equity and on the above Dollar to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.
Interest rate risk profile
In managing interest rate risk, the Group and/ Company aims to reduce the impact of short-term
fluctuations in earnings.
Exposure to interest rate risk
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group and/ Company’s interest-bearing financial
instruments was as follows:
Carrying amount
Company
Group
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
31 Dec 2018
31 Dec 2017
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial liabilities
3,035,002
4,364,784
3,035,002
4,364,784
Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities

2,441,878

4,495,752

2,441,878

4,495,752

The Group and/Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or
loss.
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have
increased/ (decreased) equity and loss for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
Group/ Company
Profit or loss
100 bp
100 bp
increase
decrease

Equity, net of tax
100 bp
increase 100 bp decrease

31 December 2018
Variable rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity

(24,419)
(24,419)

24,419
24,419

(24,419)
(24,419)

24,419
24,419

31 December 2017
Variable rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity

(44,958)
(44,958)

44,958
44,958

(44,958)
(44,958)

44,958
44,958
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(d) Capital risk management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital,
using a ratio of "adjusted net debt" to "capital employed". For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Capital employed is also defined as adjusted net debt less
total equity. Management also monitors the level of dividends to all shareholders.
The Group and/ Company's adjusted net debt to capital employed ratio at the end of the year was as
follows:
Group
Total liabilities
Less: Cash and cash
equivalents
Net debt
Total equity
Total capital employed
Net debt to capital employed ratio

Company

31 Dec 2018

31 Dec 2017

31 Dec 2018

31 Dec 2017

73,136,449

66,209,707

73,139,826

66,209,707

(10,359,408)

(1,757,664)

(10,358,487)

(1,755,828)

62,777,041
(8,299,702)

64,452,043
(34,018,897)

62,781,339
(8,439,080)

64,453,879
(34,121,765)

54,477,339

30,433,146

54,342,259

30,332,114

87%

47%

87%

47%

The Company is exposed to externally imposed capital requirements as a result of its concession
agreement. The Company is expected to ensure that the ratio of equity (Share capital, share premium,
amounts due in respect of shareholder's loan which are subordinated to debt and distributable reserves
available for distribution) to the total capital (equity and senior debt) of the concessionaire does not fall
below twenty five percent (25%) at any time thereafter during the first five (5) years of the concession.
Senior debt is defined as concessionaire debt and/ or qualifying shareholder debt.
As at year end, the ratio of equity to total capital was as follows:

Equity
Senior debt
Total capital
Ratio of equity to total capital

Company
31 Dec 2018
31 Dec 2017
8,439,080
34,121,765
5,476,880
8,860,536
13,915,960
42,982,301
61%
79%
Favourable
Favourable

Condition
There were no significant changes in the Group and/or Company’s approach to capital management during
the year.
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(e) Fair values
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assests and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
Group
Financial
Other
assets at
financial Total Carrying
amortised cost
liabilities
Amount Fair Value
Note
(Level 2)
31 December 2018
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables*
15.
19,384,594
19,384,594
Cash and cash equivalents
17.
10,359,408
10,359,408
29,744,002
29,744,002
Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
24.
5,257,068
5,257,068
Trade and other payables**
26.
11,483,949
11,483,949
Concession fees payable
25.
54,352,201
54,352,201
71,093,218
71,093,218
-

Loans and
receivables

Other
financial Total Carrying
liabilities
Amount

31 December 2017
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables*
Cash and cash equivalents

15.
17.

41,428,422
5,744
41,434,166

-

41,428,422
5,744
41,434,166

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liability
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

22
24
26
25

-

9
28,956
26,264
47,170,818
47,226,047

9
28,956
26,264
47,170,818
47,226,047

Fair Value
(Level 2)
131,435
131,435
9
9
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Company
Financial
assets at
amortised cost

Other
Total Carrying
financial
Amount
liabilities

Fair Value
(Level 2)

31 December 2018
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables*
Cash and cash equivalents

15.
17.

19,384,594
10,358,487
29,743,081

-

19,384,594
10,358,487
29,743,081

-

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

24.
26.
25.

-

5,476,880
11,487,326
54,352,201
71,316,407

5,476,880
11,487,326
54,352,201
71,316,407

-

Loans and
receivables

Other Total Carrying
Amount
financial

31 December 2017
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables*
Cash and cash equivalents

15.
17.

41,428,422
5,738
41,434,160

-

41,428,422
5,738
41,434,160

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liability
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

22
24.
26.
25.

-

9
28,956
26,264
47,170,818
47,226,038

9
28,956
26,264
47,170,818
47,226,038

Fair Value
(Level 2)
131,435
131,435
9
9

* excludes other receivables and amounts due from Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited per Note 15.
** excludes other payables, and statutory deductions per Note 26.

The discounted cash flow technique was used to value the trade receivables. A rate of 5.375% was used in
determining the fair value of the current trade receivables while 7% was used for the non-current
receivables. These rates represent the Nigeria Eurobonds yield at issue rate for July 2018 and January 2021
respectively as issued by the Debt Management Office (DMO). The directors believe that these rates best
reflect the return on investment on assets with similar characteristics.
The derivative financial liability was calculated using the strike price and the estimated foreign exchange
rate as at maturity date. It is the discounted value of the cash flow to be obtained using the difference
between the strike price and the estimated foreign exchange rate at maturity date.
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Value Added Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018
Revenue

Group
%

2017

%

2018

Company
%

2017

37,674,175

33,131,460

37,674,175

33,131,460

Bought in materials and services:
(38,398,189)
- Local
(2,439,310)
- Foreign
(40,837,499)

(9,964,745)
(7,829,442)
(17,794,187)

(38,363,600)
(2,439,310)
(40,802,910)

(9,954,815)
(7,821,641)
(17,776,456)

-

172,640

-

%

Other Income

172,640

Value added

(2,990,684)

100

15,338,190

100

(2,956,095)

100

15,355,004

100

(3,346,328)

111

(4,937,972)

(32)

(3,346,328)

113

(4,937,972)

(32)

To Employee:
- Salaries and wages

2,699,190

(90)

2,355,724

16

2,698,883

(91)

2,354,807

16

To providers of capital:
- Interest Expense

1,138,998

(38)

1,734,847

11

1,138,998

(39)

1,734,847

11

12
65
28

99,176
1,837,824
(5,384,648)

(62)
182

42,798
1,797,210
10,000,000
4,363,314

12
65
28

100

(2,956,095)

103

15,355,004

100

Distribution of value added
To Government :
- Income tax and royalties

Retained in the business:
Depreciation
Amortisation
To pay proposed dividends
To augument reserves

99,176
1,837,824

(3)
(61)

(5,419,544)

181

42,798
1,797,210
10,000,000
4,345,583

Value added

(2,990,684)

100

15,338,190
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Company
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income
2018

2017

2016
Restated*

2015
Restated*

2014

Revenue

37,674,175

33,131,460

28,037,849

11,989,585

10,335,538

Operating Profits
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive
income for the year

8,051,042
(5,384,648)

17,807,330
9,425,342

20,473,752
9,877,838

7,361,313
(285,843)

5,458,731
(1,329,704)

(2,980,948)

14,449,279

13,453,589

(271,296)

(931,021)

31 Dec 2018

31 Dec 2017

31 Dec 2016
Restated*

31 Dec 2015
Restated*

31 Dec 2014

49,822,826
31,756,080
(42,431,084)
(30,708,742)
8,439,080

59,534,634
40,796,838
(45,905,814)
(20,303,893)
34,121,765

51,077,731
36,020,500
(49,770,205)
(8,975,540)
28,352,486

31,229,356
17,000,281
(32,296,376)
(7,614,264)
8,318,997

29,508,431.00
10,246,570.00
(25,154,078.00)
(5,142,946.00)
9,457,977

500,000
8,133,191
(5,035,111)
4,841,000

500,000
8,133,191
18,822,709
6,665,865

500,000
8,133,191
13,139,395
6,579,900

500,000
8,133,191
(314,194)
-

500,000
7,611,151
1,346,826
-

8,439,080

34,121,765

28,352,486

8,318,997

9,457,977

Statement of Financial Position

Employment of Funds
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Funds Employed
Share capital
Share Premium
Retained earnings
Translation reserve

Group
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
2018
37,674,175

2017
33,131,460

2016
Restated*
28,037,849

2015
Restated*
11,989,585

2014
-

8,016,146
(5,419,544)

17,807,330
9,425,342

20,473,752
9,877,838

7,361,313
(285,843)

-

(3,017,458)

14,363,314

13,453,589

(271,296)

-

31 Dec 2018

31 Dec 2017

31 Dec 2016
Restated*

31 Dec 2015
Restated*

31 Dec 2014

49,815,458
31,620,693
(42,431,084)
(30,705,365)
8,299,702

59,534,634
40,796,838
(45,905,814)
(20,303,893)
34,121,765

51,077,731
36,020,500
(49,770,205)
(8,975,540)
28,352,486

31,226,856
16,939,345
(32,296,376)
(7,614,264)
8,255,561

-

500,000
8,133,191
(5,175,481)
4,841,992
8,299,702

500,000
8,133,191
18,717,235
6,668,471
34,018,897

500,000
8,133,191
13,051,652
6,582,488
28,267,331

500,000
8,133,191
(377,630)
8,255,561

-

Revenue
Operating Profits
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive
income for the year

Statement of Financial Position

Employment of Funds
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-Current liabilities
Current liabilities
Funds Employed
Share capital
Share Premium
Retained earnings
Translation reserve
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